

# San Francisco Youth Commission Minutes ~ Draft Monday, May 15, 2017 5:15 pm~8:00 pm City Hall, Room 421 1. Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Pl. San Francisco, CA 94102

There will be public comment on each item.

Madeleine Matz (Chair), William Juarez (Vice Chair), Martin Krause, Lily Marshall-Fricker, Lisa Yu, Joshua Park, Cris Plunkett, Mary Claire Amable, Emma David, Noah David, Hugo Vargas, Cecilia Nicole Galeano, Jarrett Mao, Jonathan Mesler, Griffin Ng, Chiara Lind

# 1. Call to Order and Roll Call for Attendance

Chair Matz called the meeting to order at 5:22pm.

Commissioners present: Madeleine Matz, William Juarez, Lily Marshall-Fricker, Lisa Yu, Joshua Park, Mary Claire Amable, Noah David, Jarrett Mao, Jonathan Mesler, Griffin Ng, Martin Krause, Cris Plunkett, Emma David.

Commissioners absent: Cecilia Nicole Galeano, Chiara Lind, Hugo Vargas. There was quorum.

## 2. Approval of Agenda (Action Item)

Commissioner Parl, seconded by Commissioner Juarez, motioned to approve the agenda. Motion was passed by acclamation. There was no public comment.

## 3. Approval of Minutes (Action Item)

A. May 8, 2017 (Document A)

Commissioner Mao, seconded by Commissioner N. David, motioned to approve the minutes. Motion was passed by acclamation.

#### 4. Public Comment on Items not on Agenda (Discussion Only)

There was no public comment.

- 5. Legislation Referred by the Board of Supervisors (All Items to Follow Discussion and Possible Action)
  - A. BOS File No. 170441 [Health Code Banning the Sale of Flavored Tobacco Products]



Sponsors: Malia Cohen, Ahsha Safai, London Breed, Mark Farrell, Jeff Sheehy, Katy Tang

Presenter: Brittni Chicuata, Legislative Aide to District 10 Supervisor Malia Cohen (Document B)

This legislation prohibits the sale of flavored tobacco products. BREATHE CA previously presented to us about this. Brittni spoke about the tobacco industry and their insidious ways of targeting youth: they mask the flavor, taste good, and allow addiction to happen easier.

Restricting flavored tobacco can help decrease preventative health dangers. Targeted marketing occurs with already vulnerable populations: LGBTQ, black communities, and other communities of colors.

Menthol is a large target of this legislation as many of marginalized communities smoke menthols and start there. People who are below poverty level are more likely to smoke.

SF pays 380 million dollars in health care finances for smoking related health care costs.

Question/Comments:

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker: thinks this is a really important policy.

Commissioner Matz-did BREATH CA bring this idea to Cohen's office or vice versa? The Youth Commission was enthusiastic about their presentation. Brittni has been working on this for almost a year and before that was working with a heart association organization so BREATHE didn't write the legislation but they provided input.

Commissioner Plunkett-the focus is on selling, but is there any part focused on arrest on those buying the products? Answer: this law is only on retailers so it's only on selling of it. If a consumer purchased it somewhere else and came to city hall and sold them, you would not be criminalized as an individual since you are not a retailer. It's about changing the environment, not the individual.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner N. David, second by Commissioner Krause, motioned to this this legislation. The motion was passed by acclamation.

## 6. Presentations (All Items to Follow Discussion and Possible Action)

A. Presentation on CHALK Power Youth Movement Conference Presenter: Andrea Juarez, Director, Youth Funding Youth Ideas, CHALK

CHALK youth members Dorian, TreyVon, and Renee were the presenters.

On June 17<sup>th</sup> from 11am-5pm at Leadership High School (350 Seneca Ave) there is a free Power Youth Movement conference and the Youth Commission is invited. This is not just a conference; it is a call to action to make change. There will be two sets of workshops: first based on history, second based on taking action and all with a social justice focus. www.PYMconference.org for more information.



Lunch and breakfast provided and there will be performances with a keynote speaker as well as vendors that will be selling things under \$25. Really want the focus to be on youth connecting with other youth and even East Bay youth are invited. There will be raffle prizes, too.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker -what can we do to support you? A motion of support?

Commissioner Amable-have you already done outreach and who have you outreached to? They have hit up different nonprofits and most SFUSD schools. They have an outreach committee on the project, sending out flyers, too. Commissioner Amable-how do you RSVP? On the website

Commissioner Mao, seconded by Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, motioned to support this conference. The motion was passed by acclamation.

Chair Matz-Is it possible to have a table there so the Youth Commission can do some voter preregistration outreach? Yes. Commissioner Park connected with the CHALK youth.

## 7. Youth Commission Business (All Items to Follow Discussion and Possible Action)

 A. [Second Reading] Resolution 1617-AL- 09 [Resolution to Highlight the Societal and Economic Impacts of Alcohol Density in San Francisco] Sponsor: Civic Engagement Committee (Document C)

This resolution was read into the record for the second time.

Comments/discussion:

Commissioner Amable-second to last resolved clause, Community is missing in mention of South of Market organization. Page 4, line 19 Community is also missing in South of Market

Chair Matz-If you have grammar or punctuation that is not content related, please mark it on the paper and mark it on the page that there are edits. If it is content related bring it up to the group on the record.

Second resolve clause to include that "YC urges..." just as in first and third clause.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner N. David, motioned to adopt pending grammatical errors that will be edited. The motion was passed by acclamation.

 B. [Second Reading] Resolution 1617-AL- 10 [Resolution urging the Mayor and Board of Supervisors to investigate the reproductive health service needs of young San Franciscans in light of the impending closure of New Generation Health Center] Sponsor: Civic Engagement Committee (Document D)

This resolution was read into the record for the second time.

Discussion/Comments:



Staff-spelling out 'Youth Commission urges'... in the resolved clauses.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner Juarez, motioned to approve this resolution. The motion was passed by acclamation.

 C. [Second Reading] Resolution 1617-AL- 12 [Resolution urging the Mayor and Board of Supervisors to ensure the implementation of the Sunlight Ordinance] Sponsor: Commissioner Lisa Yu (Document E)

This resolution was read into the record for the second time.

Comments/discussion:

Staff- add semi colons before "and's".

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Park, seconded by Commissioner Amable, motioned to generally support this resolution. The motion was passed by acclamation.

 D. [Second Reading] Resolution 1617-AL- 13 [Resolution Urging the Mayor and Board of Supervisors to Adopt a Formal Definition of Family Housing] Sponsor: Commissioner Emma David (Document F)

This resolution was read into the record for the second time.

Comments/discussion:

Staff- add semi colons before "and's".

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner Plunkett, motioned to approve this resolution. The motion was passed by acclamation.

E. [Second Reading] Resolution 1617-AL- 14 [Resolution Urging the Mayor and Board of Supervisors to Adopt Legislation That Incentivize and Promotes the Construction of Family Housing and Prioritizes Families with Dependents in the Inclusionary Housing Selection Process] Sponsor: Commissioner Emma David (Document G)

This resolution was read into the record for the second time.

Comments/discussion:



Commissioner Amable-what is the difference between downtown and Civic Center? In this case we're talking about overcrowding in SROs so instead of saying Civic Center should say Tenderloin when it comes to SRO overcrowding.

Staff- add semi colons before "and's".

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Yu, seconded by Commissioner Plunkett, motioned to approve this resolution. The motion was passed by acclamation.

 F. [Second Reading] Youth Commission Budget & Policy Priorities for Fiscal Years 2017-2018, and 2018-2019 (Document H)

A 4 minute recess taken. The meeting back to order at 6:23pm.

Chair Matz reminded folks to pay attention as we do want edits and suggestions. We will approve priorities individually and at the end will approve the document in its entirety at the end.

Priority 1 was tabled for later as updated supplementary documents are being printed.

**Priority 2**: Edits will be done the same as the above resolutions so mark little grammatical errors and packet and turn into staff. This priority was read into the record for a second time.

There was no public comment. There was no comment or discussion.

Commissioner N. David, seconded by Commissioner Yu, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 3**: This priority was read into the record for a second time. Commissioner Yu-clarify the differences of Civic Center and/or Tenderloin as to clarify the districts.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Park, seconded by Commissioner N. David, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 4**: This priority was read into the record for a second time. Staff-put in a timeframe edit for the CPA survey, Commissioner Matz- take out the thank you to Maria Su and put it somewhere else in the document since it's technically not a recommendation.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Mesler, seconded by Commissioner N. David, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 5**: This priority was read into the record for a second time. There were no content edits.

There was no public comment.



Commissioner Mao, seconded by Commissioner Yu, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 6**: Staff-citations for direct quotes needed as footnotes. Consider including the SOMA in the line in 4<sup>th</sup> paragraph above recommendations. Staff- In final paragraph of background what was being referred to with the Maher quote about trading shadows for dollars-what's the context? Commissioner Matz-Do you have recommendations about the enforcement versus just the discussion piece of this? Is there something more that you want the City to do besides just get community input? A hearing could be great to ask for but could be a second recommendation.

Staff-if there was a sense this hasn't been implemented and so it's important to state that. Or to ask for a hearing to hear the number of planning proposals that have been modified due to Prop K.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner Mao, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 7**: Commissioner Matz-It says "prioritize", which Matz thinks is light and wants to say "include" instead of prioritize. Commissioner Marshall-Fricker: isn't prioritize stronger? Matz thinks it's stricter to use include vs. prioritize. Spell out TAY.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner N. David, seconded by Commissioner Mesler, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 8**: Staff-Need to clear up some of the dates of meetings. Add in resolution number of BoE comment.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner Mesler, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 9**: Commissioner Matz-lots of movement on this particular BPP which is exciting and wants to highlight this. Commissioner Park-second paragraph on background change 17 year history to 20 year history. Date and memo numbers will be updated.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Juarez, seconded by Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 10**: Commissioner Park-enter community after SOMCAN. Staff-in first paragraph of recent updates about last sentence of powerful testimony (where did they share testimony?) and recommendations number two: could also ask for health impact analysis. Citations needed.



There was no public comment.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner N. David, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 11**: Staff-in updates section it would be helpful to be specific of what DCYF was committing to (said they would triple up the trainings to providers). Commend DCYF on their commitment to the support of this and moving forward, but are moving forward in limited incremental ways. Recommendation 2: around collecting data on foster care which is part of HSA data collection and would be good to have teeth to data collection and that it's followed up on and departments have things to implement it. Can hold DCYF accountable in rec 4 in last line to have plan include language in RFP process and make it its own recommendation and to separate this out. So can hold them accountable to a very specific thing. In rec 2 from community folks said that queer youth service providers are saying they aren't asking/using best practices of talking with youth so as to include that ensuring that departments are working with folks who know how to work with queer youth.

Staff-how is the "I" being used for the acronym of LGBTQIQ as it isn't stated in the admin code itself. So be careful and consistent of acronym usage.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner Amable, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 12**: Staff-add in 25 units are coming online next month at BT Washington site. Recs 1 and 2 could be combined, whereas rec 3 could be two distinct recs. Break up number 3 and have one be about the housing and one be about the service needs with units coming online.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner N. David, seconded by Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, motioned to approve this priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

## Priority 13:

Discussion: Commissioner Marshall-Fricker thinks priorities 12 and 13 should be merged together. Commissioner Mao-most of our former asks for 13 were covered in new Dept of Homelessness priorities as they are planning to revisit the methodology. Year of Homeless youth should just be added as a rec to priority 12.

Staff-recommend that the writing of 13 go with 12 since it's so well written. Supervisor Sheehy's office asked for a report of homeless youth from the Youth Commission and that was the framework of how they structured the youth homelessness hearing last week. In the hearing staff said they were putting together new recs and we would put them forward at the continued hearing. The City is waiting for your recs so it might be more powerful if you give one report versus giving them two.

Commissioner Matz-great writing in number 13 and wants to see if preserved somehow.



There was no public comment.

Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, seconded by Commissioner Mao, motioned to combine priorities 12 and 13 and approve the priority. The motion was passed by acclamation.

**Priority 1:** Chair Matz went back to Priority 1 as we now have the supplemental doc. Staff-be consistent with LBGT acronym and include "What Now" event. On second page speaking of compensation of youth take out "whenever possible" and just put in a direct ask for youth to be compensated for advocacy, advising of adults.

Commissioner Park, seconded by Commissioner Amable, motioned to approve this priority pending edits from the upcoming Youth Town Hall. The motion was passed by acclamation.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Mao wanted to reopen **Priority 13** for slight edit: Commissioner Maorecommends to let have TAY receive an equitable amount of funds from Youth Empowerment Allocation fund. Staff-this is talked about as 1/3 of the growth fund.

There was no public comment.

Commissioner N. David, seconded by Commissioner Marshall-Fricker, motioned to approve this priority with the suggestion from Mao on portions of the growth fund going towards TAY. The motion was passed by acclamation.

Commissioner Park, seconded by Commissioner Ng, motioned to approve the entire document. The motion was passed by acclamation.

G. Discussion on Key to the City: Youth Empowerment & Organizing Townhall Sponsor: Youth Commission Staff

4:30-7 this Wednesday at the Mix.

Facilitators are prepping at 4:30pm tomorrow at the office. Connect with Adele if you would like to help out.

## 8. Committee Reports (Discussion Only)

A. Executive Committee

Youth Fiber Survey is complete.

B. Housing, Recreation and Transportation Committee

Worked on BPPs.

C. Immigration, Justice and Employment Committee

Worked on BPPs and Town Hall meeting.

D. Civic Engagement Committee



Received grant from BLING. Worked on pre-registration outreach.

E. Our Children Our Family Council

Commissioner Galeano is not here to report back.

## 9. Staff Report (Discussion Only)

-64 applicants including those seeking reappointment for next year's Youth Commission -Petra DeJesus has lobbying day on her behalf tomorrow at 12:30pm.

#### **10.** Announcements (This Includes Community Events)

-Giants are winning

-Commissioner Mesler signed up for townhall role and can't do it so it would be great if someone could take on his facilitation role.

#### 11. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 9:14pm.